
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 
 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery 
Scrutiny Panel 
 
 

Date: Thursday, 5th November, 2020 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: Ashfield District Council’s YouTube Channel 

  

For any further information please contact: 
 

Lynn Cain 
 

l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk 
 

01623 457317 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFr4nJ9HVt9NAg1MlRMb4kw/featured


 

 
 

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY SCRUTINY PANEL 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor David Hennigan 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Jim Blagden 

 
Councillors:  
Dale Grounds Kevin Rostance 
Dave Shaw John Smallridge 
Caroline Wilkinson  

 
 
 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317. 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS 
 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the COVID-19 Response and Recovery 
Scrutiny Panel to be held at the time on the date mentioned above for the purpose of 
transacting the business set out below. 
 

 
Carol Cooper-Smith 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and 
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.  
 
 

 

3.   To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of a 
meeting of the Panel held on 6 October 2020.  
 
 

5 - 14 

4.   Business Recovery and Support.  
 
 

15 - 22 

5.   Guidance and Restrictions Update.  
 
 

23 - 28 

6.   Local Government Reorganisation.  
 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Virtual Meeting held on Tuesday, 6th October, 2020 at 7.00 pm 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor David Hennigan in the Chair; 

 Councillors Jim Blagden, Dale Grounds, 
Kevin Rostance, John Smallridge and 
Caroline Wilkinson. 
 

Apology for Absence: Councillor Dave Shaw. 
 

Officers Present: Lynn Cain, Ruth Dennis, Theresa Hodgkinson, 
Mike Joy, Trevor Middleton, Christine Sarris, 
Paul Stoppard and Shane Wright. 
 

In Attendance: Martin Rigley Chairman of Discover Ashfield 
Board). 
Councillor Jason Zadrozny. 

 
 
 

CP.6 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests 
and Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests 
 

 No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
CP.7 Minutes 

 
 RESOLVED 

that the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 3 September 2020, be 
received and approved as a correct record. 
 

 
CP.8 Guidance Update and Small Business/High Street Recovery 

 
 The Chairman introduced the item and welcomed Martin Rigley, the Chairman 

of the Discover Ashfield Board, to the meeting who was kindly in attendance to 
offer a business perspective regarding small business and high street recovery 
following the recent Covid-19 lockdown.   
 
Theresa Hodgkinson (Director of Place and Communities), Trevor Middleton 
(Town Centres and Markets Manager) and Paul Stoppard (Senior Economic 
Development Officer), were also in attendance at the meeting to offer their 
insight and expertise to various aspects of business sector recovery as 
required. 
 
Councillor Jim Blagden, Vice Chairman of the Panel, updated Members as to 
progress with the potential development of the Key Workers’ Memorial.  
Having spoken to officers, it had been agreed to place an article in the next 
‘Ashfield Matters’ publication to encourage residents to offer their views 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

regarding the potential style and location for the memorial thus enabling the 
Council to gauge public opinion and progress the project accordingly.  
 
Residents would be asked to respond via a dedicated email address and 
complete a short questionnaire and in addition, letters would also be sent out 
to local schools, voluntary groups and churches asking for their involvement in 
the process.  The publication was due to be circulated (to around 120,000 
residents) with the annual bin calendars week commencing 23 November 
2020. 
 
The wording for the Key Workers’ Memorial article, to be placed in the 
‘Ashfield Matters’ winter publication, was read out to the Panel for information. 
 
The Service Manager, Scrutiny and Democratic Services outlined the current 
government guidelines for maintaining Covid secure environments within the 
business and retail sector including the ‘Hands/Face/Space slogan, the 
continued ‘Working from Home’ preference and enforcement rules for licenced 
premises. 
 
It had been agreed at the previous meeting to focus the Panel’s work on the 
local business sector and this has been agreed to be carried out over the 
following two meetings.  Tonight’s meeting would concentrate on small 
businesses and high street recovery with the second meeting offering an 
opportunity for Panel Members to speak to local businesses and gain insight 
into their personal experiences during the pandemic. 
 
The Panel were also being asked to consider the Economic Recovery Plan, as 
outlined in the report and decide on any interim recommendations for 
submission to Cabinet on 13 October 2020. 
 
Theresa Hodgkinson, Director of Place and Communities 
To date, the Council’s Environmental Health Team had worked with over 2,000 
local businesses to offer support and guidance to keep them trading safely and 
efficiently during and after the recent lockdown.  The advice and support given 
had been exemplary and the Council had recently seen over 60 new 
registrations for food outlets which had been surprising given the difficulties 
being faced by so many as a result of the pandemic. 
 
The Planning Team had also continued to work at full strength considering 
over 90 planning applications during the lockdown period.  Over £18.4 million 
in business grants had been administered which had assisted 1,614 local 
businesses.  The Discretionary Business Grant which had now superseded the 
original funding grant from Government, had already been awarded to 
approximately 90 businesses to the tune of around £840,000. 
 
The Council had recently recruited a new Economic Development Team who 
were now up and running and assisting local and potential new businesses 
across the District.  The Town Centres and Market Manager was also 
continuing to work hard within the Council’s towns and high streets to support 
local businesses and stimulate the economy following lockdown. 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

The Economic Recovery Plan, as outlined in the report, detailed the latest real 
time data to help the Council understand the significant impact that the Covid-
19 pandemic and associated economic disruption has been having upon 
Ashfield’s economy.  
 
Over 30% (17,700) of Ashfield’s working residents had been furloughed 
through the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme, and visits to retail, recreation 
and workplace venues was still significantly lower than ‘normal’, posing 
economic challenges for Kirkby, Sutton and Hucknall Town Centres. 
 
The impact on individual sectors during the pandemic had varied significantly 
reflecting the extent to which lockdown measures had forced some industries 
to temporarily ‘shut down’.  Just over 20% of Ashfield’s local employment, 
output and business bases fell within the highest risk sectors but 
manufacturing continued to remain strong including the substantial numbers of 
public sector workers which helped insulate Ashfield to an extent in the short-
to-medium term.   
 
The recent logistics development at Summit Park also demonstrated that if 
high quality development opportunities were provided, Ashfield’s future 
remained bright. 
 
It had been envisaged that it would take at least two to three years for local 
economies to recover to pre-Covd-19 levels of activity and the Council could 
only build on data as it emerged. 
 
It had been agreed that to assist with any local economy recovery, the Council 
needed to adopt its Economic Recovery Plan and focus on the following: 
 

 Town Centre Recovery 

 Regeneration Capacity Building 

 Skills and Training 

 Industrial Sectoral Support 

 Green Business Growth 

 Development and Infrastructure Projects 

 Supporting Ashfield’s Residents. 
 
Martin Rigley, Chairman of Discover Ashfield Board 
The Discover Ashfield Board had been up and running for the last three years 
and had focussed on four main themes: 
 

 Ensuring Ashfield Succeeds; 

 Promoting the ‘Love Where You Live’ campaign; 

 Health and Wellbeing for all in Ashfield; 

 Visiting Ashfield and its attractions. 
 
From a personal perspective as the owner of a local engineering company, the 
fact that the business was able to trade throughout the lockdown with only 3 
employees needing to be furloughed for varying reasons, had been a relief. 
Since lockdown, new business was sporadic with work arriving in spurts rather 
than as a steady flow as in previous years.   
 
 

Page 7



 

Due to the fear of a second lockdown and further uncertainly, it was obvious 
that this has embedded a loss of confidence in customers who were unsure of 
their finances and longer term earning ability and financial stability.  The 
tapering off of the current furlough scheme was also a worry for many local 
businesses and current discussions though the East Midlands Chamber of 
Commerce, had revealed that many businesses (not particularly in the Ashfield 
area) were on the verge of closing down and ceasing trading. 
 
The pandemic had also seen many companies having to adapt the services or 
products they offered (including moving their operations online) or having to 
‘phoenix’ into something else entirely to ensure that they remained afloat and 
viable as a business.  It would be important going forward to ensure that local 
authorities assisted local businesses with these types of changes. 
 
The harsh reality was that there was a long way to go towards recovery but 
Ashfield District Council had done a superb job of supporting its local 
businesses and the arrival of Amazon at Summit Park had been a wonderful 
addition during these difficult times.   
 
With regard to the Discover Ashfield Board, they were currently in the process 
of recruiting a graduate officer to support the Board on a full time basis.  The 
Council had done a sterling job of supporting the Board Members on a part 
time basis but it was felt that dedicated support was now required in the 
current climate.  It was also imperative for the Board to continue to recruit key 
ambassadors to Discover Ashfield to promote the organisation and provide 
timely and efficient responses to local business opportunities, or crises, as 
they arose. 
 
Questions to Martin Rigley from Panel Members: 
 

Question/Comment: 
 

Response: 

What good advice can I offer local 
businesses if they ask what to do in 
the event of a further lockdown? 

To be brave and do what is best for 
your particular business.  Plans are 
changing constantly so keep abreast 
of new legislation and guidelines and 
make the best decisions for your 
business… 
 

Congratulations for keeping all your 
staff employed in your engineering 
business during lockdown 

Thank you and yes, we kept all staff 
employed and one member is 76 
years old!  Good communication is 
key  
 

Do you think more apprenticeships 
are a good idea once the pandemic 
is over and can all local businesses 
play their part? 
 
 
 
 
 

My company is looking to recruit two 
new apprentices utilising the 
Kickstart Scheme.  The scheme is 
good and looks promising  

Page 8



 

Do you know if there has been much 
interest in the Kickstart scheme from 
local businesses? 

Yes I believe there has and from a 
wider perspective, over 500 
businesses have recently enquired 
about the scheme through the East 
Midlands Chamber of Commerce so 
the interest is definitely there 
 
(The Director of Place and 
Communities added that the 
Council’s Economic Development 
Team were busy promoting the 
Kickstart scheme and 20 placements 
had already been agreed for 
Ashfield District Council) 
 

Have you received any feedback 
from Hucknall businesses? 

Yes, the themes are the same 
across Ashfield, pubs and 
restaurants are having a tough time 
and the ‘Eat Out to Help Out’ 
scheme had a negative impact on 
food takeaway outlets 
 

Should new businesses risk starting 
out at this point in time? 

I think it would be a brave move but 
with lots of support it can be 
achieved 
 

Are there Covid-19 Inspectors 
visiting business premises to carry 
out checks? 

No this is not really happening at the 
moment, it is for the business itself 
to undertake risk assessments and 
ensure their premises meet 
Government guidelines.  Other 
businesses can offer much needed 
support and guidance to each other, 
alongside the Council and online 
facilities, with this particular issue 
 

Is there a silver lining in these 
difficult times with Brexit looming on 
the horizon for local manufacturing 
businesses? 

Yes.  Many overseas firms are now 
looking to the future after Brexit and 
may require manufacturing bases in 
the UK longer term.   
 

 
Trevor Middleton, Town Centres and Markets Manager 
It was acknowledged that Ashfield District Council has a strong base of local 
businesses and supporting them continued to be extremely rewarding.  Only 
essential businesses continued trading during lockdown but Council visits 
commenced again with businesses (and customers) in July 2020 as the 
lockdown restrictions eased.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

With the focus shifting to recovery and restarting the local economy it was 
noticeable that businesses who had moved their trading online had faired 
considerably better than those reliant on customers visiting their premises.  
Support was now being offered to organisations to consider expanding their 
services and productivity online. 
 
The Council’s Covid-19 Information Officer has been busy visiting all local 
retail businesses distributing information leaflets and offering support and 
guidance to enable them to be Covid secure as required.  The next stage of 
the support package has been facilitating the provision and display of the 
necessary QR codes to ensure customers can input information into the track 
and trace app as required.   
 
670 retail premises have been visited to date and officers are currently building 
a central contact database of local businesses to ensure information can be 
disseminated to them in a timely manner as legislation and guidelines change 
over the coming months.  The importance of building up strong working 
relationships with the local business and retail sector was acknowledged to try 
and enable them to work together and resolve difficulties as they arise. 
 
Questions to Trevor Middleton and Theresa Hodgkinson from Panel Members: 
 

Question/Comment: 
 

Response: 

Why is trade failing to increase at 
Hucknall Market? 

Hucknall market is actually doing 
well against national ratings and 
moving the market temporarily onto 
the market place to help non-
essential retailers kick start their 
trading has been a success.  The 
layout of Sutton market has also 
been changed to a rectangle which 
has worked well and kept customers 
safe  
 

How is the Council dealing with the 
public repeatedly touching the pay 
machines in car parks and 
potentially spreading the virus? 

Although it remains the responsibility 
of individuals to maintain their 
personal hygiene standards, 
guidance is being sent out this week 
to offer advice on how to use the pay 
equipment as safely as possible.  
The pay by phone app is also now 
available to enable customers to pay 
for their parking places without using 
the pay machines 
 

Suggestion that an award scheme 
could be established to recognise 
local businesses who have excelled 
(often at their own cost) at providing 
a safe and Covid secure 
environment for their customers; 

Good idea that these committed 
businesses should be recognised for 
their high standards and promoted to 
customers accordingly.  This award 
scheme could possibly be facilitated 
through the 2020 CHAD business 
recognition initiative 

Page 10



 

How is the Council going to support 
local retailers through the imminent 
second wave of the pandemic? 

The Economic Recovery Plan sets 
out how the Council intends to 
support local businesses through 
any further lockdowns and 
Government restrictions over both 
the short and medium term   
 

Having recently witnessed an 
incidence of anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) in Sutton town centre, would 
the Council consider providing an 
increased Community Protection 
Officer (CPO) presence?  

Most incidences are unfortunate but 
sporadic and cannot successfully be 
mitigated against by increasing CPO 
presence indefinitely but 
interestingly, shopkeepers in Sutton 
have commented that incidences of 
ASB have noticeably reduced since 
lockdown 
 

How does the Council feel about the 
recent announcement to provide 
funding for Covid Marshall for town 
centres? 

Town Centres in Ashfield are 
working well with the support and 
guidance from the Council’s 
Environmental Health Team and this 
supportive approach is far more 
effective that any potential 
enforcement regimes 
 

 
Paul Stoppard, Senior Economic Development Officer 
The new Business Support Hub that has been established by the Economic 
Development Team had been created to offer local and new businesses timely 
advice regarding the extensive and complex array of grants (134 in total) and 
support opportunities available to them.  In the current climate, relationships 
with partners needed to be built quickly to ensure necessary support was 
readily available to offer a helping hand as required.   
 
A new website page was currently being developed to outline the services on 
offer and these facilities would be full promoted across all the Council’s social 
media platforms.   
 
On conclusion of the updates and ensuing discussions, the Chairman took the 
opportunity to extend his appreciation to Martin Rigley for taking time out of his 
busy schedule to attend the meeting and offer a valuable perspective to the 
Panel in relation to the local business sector and its experiences throughout 
the pandemic.  Thanks were also extended to Theresa Hodgkinson, Trevor 
Middleton and Paul Stoppard for offering their time and expertise to the 
ongoing Covid-19 recovery process.  
 
RESOLVED that 
a) the Council’s ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic and its 

developing recovery programme, as outlined in the report, be received and 
noted; 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

b) the Senior Economic Development Officer be requested to provide a 
briefing note to the next meeting of the Panel outlining the work of the new 
Business Support Hub and the signposting and support service being 
offered to local and enquiring businesses in relation to potential access to 
grant funding (including temporary Covid-19 funding); 

 
c) an invite be extended to Jonathan Gribbin, the County Council’s Director of 

Public Health for Nottinghamshire, to attend the next meeting of the Panel 
to advise Members in relation to the development of the county-wide 
response to the pandemic and subsequent recovery plans; 

 
d) the Chairman of the COVID-19 Response and Recovery Panel be required 

to submit the following interim recommendations to the Cabinet on 13 
October 2020: 
 
1. the draft Economic Recovery Plan be approved with the proviso that the 

Plan is updated accordingly as circumstances change; 
 

2. work be undertaken to consider establishing a scheme to recognise 
local businesses that have excelled at adapting to guidelines and 
providing a COVID-secure environment for customers, in conjunction 
with key partners such as Discover Ashfield;  

 
3. the Council continues working toward the establishment of a Key 

Workers Memorial, including consultation with Ashfield residents and 
key partners; 

 
4. the Council’s established Business Support Hub offers support for those 

looking to set up new businesses or reinvent existing businesses as a 
result of the pandemic; 

 
5. Cabinet be commended for the decision to implement 2 hour free 

parking in all town centre car parks to aid the longer-term recovery of 
Ashfield’s local economy;  

 
6. congratulations be extended to the Planning and Economic 

Development Team, the Environmental Health Team, and the Discover 
Ashfield Board for their continued efforts to ensure that local businesses 
sufficiently adapt to COVID-19 measures and survive the ongoing 
economic difficulties brought about by the pandemic; 

 
7. that the Council looks at all options to use all of the ring-fenced 

‘Reopening High Streets’ Fund innovatively. 
 

 
CP.9 Local Government Reorganisation - Verbal Update 

 
 The Director of Legal and Governance (and Monitoring Officer) gave a brief 

update to the Panel in relation to Local Government Reorganisation. 
 
Members were advised that the white paper on local government devolution 
and reorganisation had now been delayed until early 2021 with no clear time 
frame set out for completion. 

Page 12



 

 
Nottinghamshire County Council had recently written to Robert Jenrick, the 
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, asking 
him to invite the County Council to submit proposals for a unitary structure.  To 
date, it was not clear as to whether a response had been received or not. 
 
Alongside this correspondence, the Leaders of Nottinghamshire’s District and 
Borough authorities has also written to the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government, stating their collective position of 
opposition to any unitary structure within Nottinghamshire. 
 
The Leader of the Council, in attendance at the meeting, spoke about working 
with neighbouring Leaders to formulate a collective view of opposition towards 
the consideration of local government reorganisation at this present time.  All 
authorities should be focussing squarely upon the current COVID-19 outbreak 
in the immediate future and endeavouring to find effective solutions to keeping 
services going during the outbreak and any further lockdowns. 
 
No response to the letters sent to the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (three were sent in total) have yet been 
received and an update would be given as to any replies in due course. 
 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.53 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: 
COVID-19 RESPONSE AND 
RECOVERY SCRUTINY PANEL 

Date: 5 NOVEMBER 2020 

Heading: BUSINESS RECOVERY AND SUPPORT 

Portfolio Holder: NOT APPLICABLE 

Ward/s:  ALL 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject to Call-In: NO 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to present Members with an update regarding the recommendations 
that were formulated at the previous meeting of the Panel and presented to the 13 October meeting 
of Cabinet. This report will also provide Members with information requested at the previous 
meeting of the Panel relating to the Council’s recently established Business Support Hub.  
 

Recommendation(s) 

 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Scrutiny Panel Members are recommended to: 
 

a. Note the information contained in this report, including further details regarding the work 
of the Business Support Hub.  
 

b. Consider the challenges and impacts the COVID-19 pandemic has placed upon 
businesses in Ashfield, alongside the Council’s established and future support measures 
to mitigate this.  
 

c. Consider any comments and/or recommendations to be presented to Cabinet at the 
scheduled 1 December meeting.  

 
Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
At the previous meeting of the Panel, Members approved a set of recommendations to be 
presented to Cabinet and wished to receive a subsequent update on the discussions held at 
Cabinet regarding the recommendations.  
 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
No alternative options have been considered at this stage.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Detailed Information 
 
CABINET – 13 OCTOBER 2020 
 
As Members will be aware, a set of seven recommendations were discussed and approved by the 
Panel at the previous meeting held on 6 October 2020. The recommendations were as follows: 
 

 The draft Economic Recovery Plan be approved with the proviso that the Plan is updated 
accordingly as circumstances change 
 

 Work be undertaken to consider establishing a scheme to recognise local businesses that 
have excelled at adapting to guidelines and providing a COVID-secure environment for 
customers, in conjunction with key partners such as Discover Ashfield 
 

 The Council continues working towards the establishment of a Key Workers Memorial, 
including consultation with Ashfield residents and key partners.  
 

 The Council’s established Business Support Hub offers support for those looking to set up 
new businesses or reinvent existing businesses as a result of the pandemic 
 

 Cabinet be commended for the decision to implement 2 hour free parking in all town centre 
car parks to aid the longer-term recovery of Ashfield’s local economy  
 

 Congratulations be extended to the Planning and Economic Development Team, the 
Environmental Health Team, and the Discover Ashfield Board for their continued efforts to 
ensure that local businesses sufficiently adapt to COVID-19 measures and survive the 
ongoing economic difficulties brought about by the pandemic 
 

 The Council explores all options to use the ring-fenced ‘reopening High Streets’ Fund’ 
innovatively 
 

The Panel’s Chair and Vice Chair attended the meeting and presented the recommendations to 
Cabinet for their consideration and approval. Following discussions, Cabinet voted unanimously to 
approve all of the recommendations presented. The Chair and Vice Chair will continue to provide 
updates on the work of the Panel to Cabinet alongside any recommendations formulated.  
 
PANEL MEETING – 6 OCTOBER 
 
The previous meeting of the Panel was attended by the Council’s Senior Economic Development 
Officer who discussed the work of the established Business Support Hub with Members. As part of 
these discussions, Members agreed that it would be useful to receive further information regarding 
the work of the Business Support Hub.  
 
The Senior Economic Development Officer has provided further information for the Panel’s 
consideration. This information is appended to this report as Appendix A. This includes details on 
the objectives, approach, present situation and work currently in progress, along with a journey map 
of the Business Support Hub service.  
 
PANEL MEETING – 5 NOVEMBER  
 
Continuing with the previously identified key area of focus of business recovery and support, 
invitations have been extended to various business representatives in Ashfield from a variety of 

Page 16



sectors, as requested by Members. Discussions with these representatives will aid the Panel’s 
understanding of the challenges businesses continue to face throughout the pandemic, especially 
as restrictions become stricter across the area. These discussions will also provide a clearer picture 
of the most appropriate support for the Council to offer going forward.  
 
At the 6 October meeting, Members agreed that an invitation should be extended to Jonathan 
Gribbin, the Director of Public Health for Nottinghamshire, to attend the 5 November meeting of the 
Panel to advise Members in relation to the development of the county-wide response to the 
pandemic and subsequent recovery plans.  
 
Unfortunately, Jonathan Gribben was unable to confirm his attendance for the 5 November meeting 
due to other diary requirements. Involvement will be sought from the Director of Public Health for 
Nottinghamshire at a future meeting of the Panel.  
 
Implications 
 
Corporate Plan: 
 
The Panel will be reviewing the Council’s response and recovery plans in line with the refreshed 
Corporate Plan.  
 
Legal: 
 
There are no direct legal implications resulting from this report.  
 
Finance: 
 
There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. Members have considered 
information relating to the financial support offered to businesses throughout the COVID-19 
pandemic.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Risk: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

General Fund – Revenue Budget 
 

None.  

General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

Risk 
 

Mitigation  

The Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register has been reviewed to 
take account of impacts and 
increased risks as a result of 
COVID-19.  
 

Monitoring and updating the COVID-19 related risks 
through the Council’s existing Corporate Risk 
Management processes and through the work of the 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Scrutiny Panel. 

Page 17



Human Resources: 
 
There are no direct HR implications resulting from this report. Any HR implications identified will be 
considered appropriately.  
 
Environmental/Sustainability: 
 
There are no direct environment or sustainability implications resulting from this report. Any 
environment or sustainability implications identified will be considered appropriately.  
 
Equalities: 
 
There are no direct equalities implications resulting from this report. Any equalities implications 
identified will be considered appropriately.  
 
Other Implications: 
 
None.  
 
Reason(s) for Urgency  
 
None. 
 
Reason(s) for Exemption 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None.  
 
Report Author and Contact Officer 
 
Shane Wright 
Scrutiny Research Officer 
01623 457318 
s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk  
 

Page 18

mailto:s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk


Briefing – Update on – New Business Support Service 
 

OUR OBJECTIVE: 
This is a ‘Triage’ business support service.  We want to help people to access the full range of available business support 
opportunities, including grant funding’s and facilitate any B2B introductions breaking down barriers to getting help. 
 

OUR APPROACH: 
Focuses on the client’s most critical commercial challenges by gathering information using a balance score card 
approach – Finance/cash flow, Customers/markets, Process/systems, People/skills or commercial property needs.  
Once we have explored these, we will review our support directory and provide solutions to the client in the form of 
a report or a short email. If the client agrees, we will also make professional referrals to partners. 
 

PRESENT SITUATION: 
 

Since joining in August, we have established a number of new support processes and tools, all part of the initial 
foundations customer journey plan – see pdf attached. We currently have the following set-up; 
 

 New Business Support Directory – with 138 different grants and business support schemes listed  

 New Partner Directory – with 90 partners and we have established relationships with most of these. 

 New Business Directory – CRM – we have collated information on 533 businesses and have set up processes to 

track client interactions, report on what support has been provided. We also know there are 4,000 registered 

businesses within our district and we are looking to purchase this data via FAME a popular marketing database 

that other LA’s use. This will then enable us to be proactive in our support offerings. 

 New Email Library – we have created a standardised communication library with 47 emails which helps us to 

respond quickly and consistently to business enquiries. 

 Grant Tracker – we have set up a new process to managed 4 x ADC business support grants; so far we have issued 

26 applications to clients since Aug to today, 14 are still open. 

At the moment we can only provide a ‘reactive’ service, responding to business email enquiries which come through 

- business.support@ashfield,gov.uk  

We cannot handle any telephone enquiries and its unlikely this will change, even when we develop additional tools. 

Our team’s resources are insufficient to accommodate this option.  

WORK CURRENTLY IN PROGRESS: 
We are working on providing clear communications channels, across the district, letting local businesses know how 
we can help them; this is being done in 2 ways – through a series of new ADC website pages and a LinkedIn Group. 
 

 I have written web content and suggested page layouts for 8 new webpages that will sit under the ‘business 

support’ section of the new ADC website. This content has yet to be fully approved but we intend to cover 

common business topics, such as: 

 

1. Coronavirus Business Support (shows latest Covid-19 financial support opportunities for businesses) 

2. A Place to Do Business (shows why locate to Ashfield / an inward Investment Page) 

3. Starting a Business (a guide with start-up grants to help get people going) 

4. Growing a Business (lots of useful grants and schemes to support business expansion) 

5. People Support and Skills (help with workforce development and recruitment) 

6. Preparing for EU Exit (Help on Brexit, were to find it and what you need to do ) 

7. Talking Heads (6-8 short videos of successful business owners talking about living and working in Ashfield) 

8. Local Business Parks (information about key business parks with development opportunities) 

 
 
 

Appendix A

Page 19

mailto:business.support@ashfield,gov.uk


LATEST UPDATE: 
We are waiting on Joanne Froggatt’s team to commence working on this. It was scheduled to begin w/c Oct-12, 

however it’s been delayed due to urgent requirements with setting up changes on the ADC website. I have been 

informed that this will now be looked at by w/e 30th Oct at which time we can expect to see a concrete project plan 

with a start date. 

NEW LINKEDIN GROUP: 
We will be establishing a new LinkedIn group to enable us to quickly let businesses know when a new grant or 
support opportunity becomes available. The group’s page content has already been written and so we just need 
some new branding to get this set-up. 
 

LATEST UPDATE: 
A meeting is scheduled with Comms team and directors for w/e 30th Oct, in which we will explore ideas for the 
group’s name, prior to moving forwards and creating a new logo / brand.  
 

COVID-19 CONTINGENCY PLAN – TIER-2 to 3 HIGH RISK SECTORSAs  

We have begun to put together a special financial business support pack, aimed at those businesses that will be hardest 
hit from Tier-2 or higher restrictions – Hospitality, Accommodation and Leisure. It seeks to alleviate the growing 
concerns of local businesses and help to reduce the volume of business enquiries we have been receiving.   
 

This document is going to be reviewed on 30th Oct with Comms team and directors. If it is approved then Comms will 
put this information into a more presentable format and we will arrange to get this sent to appropriate local 
businesses. Possible through the; Commercial Environment Protections team and also Town Centres and Markets 
Team. 

  
NEW CRM SYSTEM: 
We are looking at purchasing a business support CRM system called Evolutive. This will increase the teams capacity 
to support local businesses, reaching approximately 30% more clients.  
 

LATEST UPDATE: 
I have completed the business case which was finalised on 27th Oct and this will be submitted with an ODR – Officer 
Decision Record to Christine Sarris in a few days’ time. 
 

TEAM OUTPUTS / PERFORMANCE: (for 2 People) 
 

OVERALL: 
125 x Client business enquiries have been supported 

28 x Clients have been referred to 43 x partners 

21 x Client business review meetings 

41 x Partner meetings 

29 x ADC meetings 

27 x Other meetings 
 

OCT-20: 

61 x client business enquiries have been supported 

12 x Clients have been referred to 25 x partners 

18 x Client business review meetings 

18 x Partner meetings 

20 x ADC meetings 

5 x Other meetings 

5 x Business support grants have been awarded 
 

OTHER PROJECTS: 
We are also engaged with additional economic development projects linked to:  
BREXIT, ROBOTICS, LRF RECOVERY CELL ACTION PLANNING. 

Page 20



27/08/2020 Vintage Layered Customer Journey Map - by Paul Stoppard [Infographic]

https://infograph.venngage.com/view/dd08030d-2a3c-47f4-ad74-d0ddac3821cd 1/2

Vintage Layered Customer Journey Map

Free Infographic Maker (https://venngage.com/)  (https://venngage.com/)

4

New Service
Journey Mapeconomic development team

Ashfield District Council

TOUCH
POINTS

COLLABORATORS

ProjectsFoundation Websites Marketing Servicing

co
ll

at
e 

D
at

a

se
t 

up
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
s

w
rit

e 
em

ai
l l

ib
ra

ry

co
nn

ec
t 

w
it

h 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

w
rit

e 
w

eb
 p

ag
es

ag
re

e 
de

si
gn

 w
or

k

de
ve

lo
p 

fo
rm

s

te
st

 li
nk

s

ch
ec

k 
&

 s
ig

n 
of

f 

Li
nk

ed
In

Fa
ce

bo
ok

Em
ai

l c
am

pa
ig

n

w
rit

e 
em

ai
ls

so
ur

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
s

zo
om

 m
ee

ti
ng

s

up
da

te
 p

er
f. 

tr
ac

ke
r

PS / ECT

NM / ECT

SL / Web Design

BE / IT Digital 

 

1 4 3 3 2

 

2 2 2 2

STAGES

STEPS

se
gm

en
t 

in
to

 s
ec

to
rs

cr
ea

te
 s

ur
ve

y

ta
rg

et
 H

&
S 

m
an

ag
er

s

ta
rg

et
 o

ps
 d

ire
ct

or
s

an
al

ys
e/

re
po

rt
 d

at
a 

co
nt

ac
t 

an
ch

or
 o

rg
s

pr
om

ot
e 

am
ba

ss
ad

or
s

bu
ild

 p
ar

tn
er

 t
ea

m
s

Identify  
business 
support 
solutions

Identify all local 
businesses and 
trading centres 

Agree a marketing plan and 
establish team ownership

Re-design and 
test all new web 

pages

Run email 
campaigns for 

property 
developers

Promote 
selected 

services to 
targeted 

businesses

Manage daily 
enquiries and 

referrals

Economy Cell 
Project - Target 

local businesses 
to collate data 

for review 

Towns Fund 
Project - align 

skills to 
employer 
demands

Agree 
changes to 

websites and  
links to other 

sites

2

1
of 1P

age 21

https://venngage.com/
https://venngage.com/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: 
COVID-19 RESPONSE AND 
RECOVERY SCRUTINY PANEL  

Date: 5 NOVEMBER 2020 

Heading: GUIDANCE AND RESTRICTIONS UPDATE 

Portfolio Holder: NOT APPLICABLE 

Ward/s:  ALL 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject to Call-In: NO 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide Members of the COVID-19 Response and Recovery 
Scrutiny Panel with an update regarding recent changes in guidance and legislation relating to 
COVID-19. This includes the move from tier 2 to tier 3 lockdown restrictions across all of 
Nottinghamshire.  
 

Recommendation(s) 

 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Scrutiny Panel Members are recommended to: 
 

a. Note the information contained in the report relating to COVID-19 guidance and 
restrictions. 
 

b. Consider how the introduction of tier three lockdown restrictions will affect the Council’s 
COVID-19 response and recovery plans.  

 

 
 
Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
As part of the established terms of reference for the COVID-19 Response and Recovery Scrutiny 
Panel, regular updates are provided to the Panel concerning up to date Government guidance and 
restrictions.  
 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
No alternative options have been considered.  
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Detailed Information 
 
Since the previous meeting of the Panel held on 6 October 2020, existing guidance and legislation 
has been altered, with new restrictions put in place across Nottinghamshire.  
 
GENERAL GUIDANCE  
 
General guidance in all areas of England continues to be to remember ‘Hands. Face. Space’: 
 

 Hands – wash your hands regularly and for 20 seconds 
 

 Face – wear a face covering in indoor settings where social distancing may be difficult, and 
where you will come into contact with people you do not normally meet 
 

 Space – stay 2 metres apart from people you do not live with where possible, or 1 metre with 
extra precautions in place (such as wearing face coverings or increasing ventilation indoors) 
 

You should continue to: 
 

 Follow social distancing rules 
 

 Work from home where you can effectively do so 
 

 Travel to venues or amenities that are open, for work or to access education, but aim to 
reduce the number of journeys you make  

 
 
COVID-19 RESTRICTIONS  
 
It was announced on Wednesday 28 October that all of Nottinghamshire would move into the top 
tier of COVID-19 restrictions on Friday 30 October. Originally, it was only intended for Nottingham 
City, Broxtowe, Rushcliffe and Gedling council areas to move into tier 3 restrictions. However, 
following delays to the release of information regarding the restrictions, it was announced that the 
move would also include Ashfield, Mansfield, Bassetlaw and Newark & Sherwood.  
 
Nottinghamshire will join Liverpool City Region, Greater Manchester, Lancaster, South Yorkshire, 
and Warrington in the highest tier of local restrictions.  
 
As set out on the Government’s COVID-19 support website, tier 3 restrictions mean at a minimum: 
 

 You must not socialise with anybody you do not live with or have formed a support bubble 
with, in any indoor setting or in any private garden or at most outdoor hospitality venues and 
ticketed events  
 

 You must not socialise in a group of more than 6 in an outdoor public space such as a park 
or beach, the countryside, a public garden or a sports venue 
 

 Pubs and bars must close; they can only remain open where they operate as if they were a 
restaurant, which means serving substantial meals, like a main lunchtime or evening meal, 
and they may only serve alcohol as part of such meal 
 

 Schools, colleges, and universities remain open 

Page 24



 

 Places of worship remain open, but household mixing is not permitted  
 

 Weddings and funerals can go ahead with restrictions on the number of attendees, however, 
wedding receptions are not allowed 
 

 Exercise classes and organised sport can continue to take place outdoors, these will only be 
permitted indoors if it is possible for people to avoid mixing with people they do not live with 
or share a support bubble with; there are exceptions for supervised activities for under 18s, 
and disability support  
 

 You should try to avoid travelling outside the very high alert level area you are in or entering 
a very high alert level area, other than for things like work, education or youth services, to 
meet caring responsibilities or if you are travelling through as part of a longer journey 
 

 You should avoid staying overnight in another part of the UK if you are resident in  very high 
alert level area if you are a resident elsewhere 

 
These are the baseline restrictions in tier 3 level areas. The Government may also seek to agree 
additional interventions in consultation with local authorities, in order to reduce the spread of the 
virus. These could include the following options: 
 

 Restrictions preventing the sale of alcohol in hospitality or closing all hospitality (except 
takeaway and delivery) 
 

 Closing indoor and outdoor entertainment venues and tourist attractions 
 

 Closing venues such as leisure centres and gyms (while ensuring provision remains 
available for elite athletes, youth and disabled sport and physical activity) 
 

 Closing public buildings, such as libraries and community centres (while ensuring provision 
remains available for youth and childcare activities and support groups) 
 

 Closing personal care and close contact services or prohibiting the highest-risk activities 
 

 Closing performing arts venues for the purposes of performing to audiences 
 
Panel Members will be kept up to date with any additional interventions introduced to Ashfield.  
 
A package of financial support measures for affected businesses and workers agreed with the 
Government, will be put in place, in line with other areas where tier 3 measures have been imposed.  
 
It is anticipated that further information regarding restrictions and financial support will be released 
in the coming days and weeks.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Implications 
 
Corporate Plan: 
 
The Panel will be reviewing the Council’s response and recovery plans in line with the refreshed 
Corporate Plan.  
 
Legal: 
 
Any legal implications relating to COVID-19 restrictions and guidance are being fully considered by 
the Council.  
 
Finance: 
 
There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. Any implications arising as a 
result of Nottinghamshire moving to tier three restrictions will be considered as part of the Panel’s 
future work, in accordance with the approved work programme.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Risk: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Human Resources: 
 
There are no direct HR implications resulting from this report. Any HR implications identified will be 
considered appropriately.  
 
Environmental/Sustainability: 
 
There are no direct environment or sustainability implications resulting from this report. Any 
environment or sustainability implications identified will be considered appropriately.  
 
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

General Fund – Revenue Budget 
 

None.  

General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

Risk 
 

Mitigation  

The Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register has been reviewed to 
take account of impacts and 
increased risks as a result of 
COVID-19.  
 

Monitoring and updating the COVID-19 related risks 
through the Council’s existing Corporate Risk 
Management processes and through the work of the 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery Scrutiny Panel. 

Page 26



Equalities: 
 
There are no direct equalities implications resulting from this report. Any equalities implications 
identified will be considered appropriately.  
 
Other Implications: 
 
None.  
 
Reason(s) for Urgency  
 
None. 
 
Reason(s) for Exemption 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None.  
 
Report Author and Contact Officer 
 
Shane Wright 
Scrutiny Research Officer 
01623 457318 
s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk  

Page 27

mailto:s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of a meeting of the Panel held on 6 October 2020.
	4 Business Recovery and Support.
	Enc. 1 for Small Business Recovery
	Business Support Update.pdf
	A4 - New Business Support Service - ADC Journey Map


	5 Guidance and Restrictions Update.



